
GDPUD Finance Committee Regular Meeting Agenda, September 18, 2019 Page 1 of 2 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

FINANCE COMMITTEE 
GEORGETOWN DIVIDE PUBLIC UTILITY DISTRICT 

6425 MAIN STREET, GEORGETOWN, CA 95634 
WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 18, 2019 

2:00 P.M. 
 

MISSION STATEMENT 
 

It is the purpose of the Georgetown Divide Public Utility District to: 
• Provide reliable water supplies 
• Ensure high quality drinking water 
• Promote stewardship to protect community resources, public health, and quality of life 
• Provide excellent and responsive customer services through dedicated and valued staff 
• Ensure fiscal responsibility and accountability are observed by balancing immediate and long-

term needs. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. PUBLIC FORUM – Any member of the public may address the Finance Committee 
on any matter within the jurisdictional authority of the Finance Committee.  Public 
members desiring to provide comments, must be recognized by the Committee 
Chairman, and speak from the podium.  Comments must be directed only to the 
Finance Committee. The public should address the Finance Committee members 
during the public meetings as Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary, or Member, 
followed by the Committee member’s individual last name. The Finance Committee 
will hear communications on matters not on the agenda, but no action will be taken.  
No disruptive conduct shall be permitted at any Finance Committee meeting.  
Persistence in disruptive conduct shall be grounds for summary termination, by the 
Chairman, of that person's privilege of address. 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR   

A. Approval of Minutes 

1. Special Meeting of August 21, 2019 

4. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Brown Act Training Presentation by Legal Counsel 

Possible Committee Action: No Action. Informational only 

B. Review Draft Leakage Consideration Policy 

Possible Committee Action: Staff presentation. Review and comment. 



GDPUD Finance Committee Regular Meeting Agenda, September 18, 2019 Page 2 of 2 

C. Review Draft Discontinuation of Residential Water Service Policy 

Possible Committee Action: Staff presentation. Review and comment. 

5. NEXT MEETING DATE  

Possible Committee Action: Establish date and time for next meeting. 

6. ADJOURNMENT 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and 
you need a disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, 
please contact Christina Cross by telephone at 530-333-4356 or by fax at 530-333-9442. 
Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one-full business day before 
the start of the meeting. In accordance with Government Code Section 54954.2(a), this 
agenda was posted on the District’s bulletin board at the September 13, 2019. 

 

 

 

 
__________________________________  __________________________ 
Steven Palmer, PE, General Manager   Date   
  

September 13, 2019



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District Finance Committee 
“Providing financial review and advisory services for the GDPUD Board of Directors in support of 

sound, prudent and business like management of the water district.” 
 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES 
 

Meeting Date & Time: August 21, 2019, at 2:00 PM 
Location:  GDPUD Boardroom  
Committee Members Present: Steve Miller (Chair), Thomas Crawford (Vice Chair), Mitch MacDonald, Sierra Nyokka, 
Don Waltz (Secretary) 
Committee Member Absent:  Ken Pauley 
Board Member Present:  Michael Saunders (Treasurer, Finance Committee Liaison) 
Staff Present:  Steven Palmer (General Manager) 
 
1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance 

Meeting called to order  
 
2. Public Forum 

No comments or questions were proffered. 
 

3. Consent Calendar - Approval of Minutes May 29, 2019 
Motion to approve was made by Don Waltz and seconded by Sierra Nyokka to approve with 
correction. Motion was unanimously approved. 

 
4. New Business 

A. Brown Act Training Presentation 
Staff requested to postpone this item to a future meeting due to trainer scheduling problem. 

 
B. Prioritize the Following Items that the Finance Committee Identified for Review during 

Fiscal Year 2019/2020: 
1. “The proportion of revenues generated by (a) fixed or base charges versus (b) unit (per 

cubic foot or miner’s inch) charges levied for water use.  The Committee may examine 
this issue within the contexts of water conservation, social justice and financial risks to the 
District.” 
Don Waltz volunteered to work on this project.  He stated that he believes that more water 
agencies are shifting to variable rate instead of fixed rate; agencies have offset the 
associated risk by having a larger reserve. 
 
Public comment: Cherie Carlyon commented that current rate structure is not fair to 
small users. 

 
2. “The future need and costs of increasing the sources of water supplied to GDPUD 

customers.  The discussion involving this matter may consider historical numbers of 
District customers, the related volume of water consumed by the customers, the El Dorado 
County General Plan and recommendations originating with the State of California.” 
Steve Miller volunteered to take the lead on this item. Sierra stated that she is likely to be 
moving out of the District in December. 
 
Public comment: Cherie Carlyon commented on status of El Dorado County Water 
Agency project to obtain more water rights from the American River. 



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District Finance Committee 
“Providing financial review and advisory services for the GDPUD Board of Directors in support of 

sound, prudent and business like management of the water district.” 
 

3. “The identification of beginning and ending fiscal year balances beginning with FY2013-
14.  This item could aid in understanding how such amounts are allocated within the 
annual budget.” 
Tom Crawford volunteered to lead this effort. 
 
Public comment: Cherie Carlyon commented that the website is missing older budgets. 
Director Saunders commented that the website is also missing some resolutions and 
ordinances. 
 

4. “Help develop a table of assets and values and projected life. The establishment of reserve 
accounts, a method of differentiating such accounts and the development of a reserve 
policy that might recognize appropriate amounts to be allocated to these accounts.” 
After discussion the committee concurred that this item should be put on hold. 
 
Public comment: Cherie commented that the District should already have created new 
funds per the new reserve policy 

 
5. “The adoption and integration of smart water meters to the extent that this program could 

affect District customers’ water bills and staff.  Estimate of date of secured funding.” 
Steve Miller volunteered to take the lead on this issue. 
 
Public comment: None. 

 
6. “Assess water losses connected with the District’s water supply system and pursue 

possible financial strategies to mitigate these losses. This item would involve in the 
identification of the magnitude of water losses and the development of financial options to 
deal with mitigating these losses.” 
After discussion the committee concurred that this item should be put on hold. 
 
Public comment: None. 
 

7. “The possibility of revising the timeline accompanying the District’s budget development 
process.” 
Don Waltz declined to take the lead on this item.  Steve Miller volunteered to take the 
lead. 
 
Public comment: Director Halpin commented on the challenges of bringing an accurate 
draft budget to the committee before enough information is known; in previous years the 
committee scheduled extra meetings to accommodate the budget process.  Committee 
member Don Waltz disagreed with this statement and believes a draft budget can be 
developed in October for the following fiscal year. 
 

8. “A review of the District’s cash investment policy.” 
Mitch MacDonald volunteered to lead this item. 

 



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District Finance Committee 
“Providing financial review and advisory services for the GDPUD Board of Directors in support of 

sound, prudent and business like management of the water district.” 
 
5.  Next meeting & adjourn 

It was decided that the next Committee meeting would be held on September 18, 2019, at 2pm at the 
Georgetown Divide Public Utility District office, 6425 Main St., Georgetown, CA 95634.  The 
meeting was then adjourned. 



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District           
Policy Manual 

2019 

 

1118-1 

Draft 

POLICY TITLE:  Leakage Consideration 

 

POLICY NUMBER: 1118 
 

 

1118.1 Background: In the 1980’s, the Board enacted a leakage consideration policy.  If a customer 

had a leak on their side of the meter due to broken pipes or other failures in the properties plumbing 

system and got it fixed promptly, they could qualify for an adjustment to their water bill. This is called 

a Leakage Consideration.  

 

The policy was based on compassion for the customer, timely repair of the leak, and payment by the 

customer for the chemicals and energy to treat the water that was lost. 

 

The customer is responsible for monitoring higher than expected usage. The District will do it’s best 

to provide high usage phone calls to customers with seemingly abnormally high usage during meter 

reading. Customers must investigate higher than expected usage to determine if the usage was caused 

by a leak. Customers should promptly repair leaks.  

  

1118.2  Eligibility: Only the legal homeowner of the property can request a leakage 

consideration. Rental tenants paying bills must contact the owner to have them request an 

adjustment from the District. 

No leak adjustments will be granted for loss of water due to irrigation or pool failures. 

No adjustments will be granted for loss of water due to leaking faucets or running toilets.   

The customer’s account must be in good standing at the time of the Leakage Consideration. 

Adjustments are limited to the water usage portion of the bill only.  

Only residential treated water customers are eligible for the leakage consideration. The 

adjustment does not apply to agricultural irrigation water accounts. 

1118.3 Procedure: A leakage consideration is calculated by staff using the following provisions. 

 

  

 1118.3.1 Qualification for a consideration requires that the customer repair the leak promptly.  

Prompt repair is considered to be within ten calendar days of notification or when the leak was 

discovered.  

 

 1118.3.2 The adjustment is calculated by staff and shall be determined by the District based 

on comparison of “normal consumption” during the same billing period of the prior year the 

leak occurred. Staff shall use the immediate past year but may, at staff’s sole discretion, 

consider other years if necessary to determine an appropriate historical usage 



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District           
Policy Manual 

2019 

 

1118-2 

Draft 

 

 1118.3.3 The customer shall be responsible for payment of one-half of the calculated water 

loss. Water consumption not subject to the water loss calculation shall be billed at the 

appropriate rate.  

 

1118.4 Number of Adjustments:  One adjustment for one billing cycle is granted for every three years 

of an active account status. If a leak persists over more than one billing cycle, the customer shall only 

receive relief for excess water usage that occurred during one billing cycle.  The leakage consideration 

may be extended to two billing cycles at the discretion of General Manager or designee, if it can be 

documented that the leak started within the last ten (10) calendar days of the billing cycle.  

 

 1118.4.1   If a property transfers ownership, considerations requested by the previous owner 

do not apply. 

 

 1118.4.2 Buyback Policy: if a customer chooses, they may repay a previous consideration 

thereby making the account eligible for a future consideration. The amount of the total leakage 

consideration is reduced by the amount of the buyback. 

 

1118.5 Authorization.  All adjustment decisions from the General Manager and/ or their designee are 

final. A customer may appeal the decision of the General Manager within (10) working days from the 

date of the General Manager’s decision. The customer’s written appeal must describe in detail the basis 

for the appeal and explain why the adjustment should be granted. The General Manager will agendize 

the appeal for a Board of Directors meeting within forty (40) days from the date the written appeal is 

received.    

 

1118.6  Application.  The customer must submit written request to the district office within 30 

days from the billing date in which the loss occurred. For example, if the leak occurred in the 

billing cycle for service months July/August, the billing date would be September 1, and the 

deadline for adjustment submittal would be September 30. Applications submitted after the 

deadline will not be exempt from late penalties and may not be approved. 

To receive an adjustment because of a leak, customer must fill out the designated form, or write 

a letter to GDPUD with the equivalent information. 

In their description, customer must explain (1) how and when the leak occurred, (2) when it was 

repaired and (3) enclose or attach copies of proof of repair (such as a plumber’s bill, parts 

receipt, photos of repair, etc.) 

If the customer or others made the repair with parts on hand and have no receipts, customer must 

state that in their description. 

Customer should include their account number, daytime phone number, and email so staff can 

contact them with questions. 



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District           
Policy Manual 

2019 

 

1118-3 

Draft 

1118.6 Submission.  All adjustment requests must be submitted to the General Manager and/or 

designee for approval. Staff will contact the customer by phone call and/or writing either detailing the 

adjusted amount of their bill, or denying the request. 

 

  



Current Policy 



Z:\Leakage Consideration\05 11 10 BOD Memo Leakage Consideration Policy.doc 

 
Georgetown Divide 

Public Utility District 

Memo 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Hank White 

Date: April 29, 2010 

Re: Agenda Item #10: Leakage Consideration Policy 

BACKGROUND/DISCUSSION: 
In the 1980’s, the Board enacted a leakage consideration policy.  The policy was 
based on compassion for the customer, timely repair of the leak, and payment by the 
customer for the chemicals and energy to treat the water that was lost. 
 
The Board has directed staff to provide an opportunity to confirm and improve the 
leakage consideration policy. 

RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the Board approve a Leakage Consideration Policy with the 
following provisions: 
• Qualification for a consideration requires that the customer repair the leak 

promptly.  Generally, prompt repair is considered to be within two weeks of 
notification.  A leakage consideration will not be granted for more than one 
billing cycle. 

• One consideration is granted for every ten years of an active account status. 
• If a customer chooses, they may repay a previous consideration thereby making 

the account eligible for a future consideration.   
• Staff shall estimate an historical usage which will be equal to the usage in a prior 

year during the same billing cycle as the leak occurred.  Staff shall use the 
immediate past year but may, at staff’s sole discretion, consider other years if 
necessary to determine an appropriate historical usage.   

• The base amount due will be calculated by applying current rates to the 
historical usage.  The amount due for the leakage shall be calculated by 
multiplying the difference of the current usage and the historical usage by a 
factor.  The factor is based on the cost associated with treating the water lost to 
the leak and will be $2.25 per 1,000 cubic feet for 2010.  Staff is authorized to 
increase the factor by $0.05 each year on January 1.  The total due will be the sum 
of the base amount and the amount due for the leakage.   



Sample Policy 

















Georgetown Divide Public Utility District           
Policy Manual 

2019 

 

 Draft 09/17/2019                                                                                                                                  xxxx-1 

POLICY TITLE: Discontinuation of Residential Water Service/Late fees 

 

POLICY NUMBER: XXXX 
 

 

 

Reference:  

Senate Bill No. 998:  Discontinuation of Residential Water Service  

California Government Code Sections 60370 ‐60375.5  

Purpose/Background:  

This policy enumerates Georgetown Divide Public Utility Water District’s administrative actions for the 

collection of delinquent accounts, including notifications, fee assignments and discontinuation of 

service.  This policy will be made available to the public on the District’s website.  The District can be 

contacted by phone at (530) 333-4356 to discuss options for averting discontinuation of water service 

for nonpayment under the terms of this policy. 

Text of policy: 

Georgetown Divide Public Utility District, as an agency of the state, formed as a special district pursuant 

to general law for the local performance of governmental or proprietary functions within limited 

boundaries, is governed in the execution of the collection of delinquent accounts by California 

Government Code Sections 60370 – 60375.5.  Furthermore, as an urban or community water system 

that supplies water to more than 200 service connections, the District is further governed, effective by 

law February 1, 2020, by Senate Bill No. 998.  

Delinquent Account:  

Delinquent accounts are hereafter identified as any account that remains unpaid (and without having 

made payment arrangements or established an alternative payment schedule) by close of business 30 

days after issuance of the water bill.  The following rules apply to the collection of delinquent accounts:  

1. Small Balance Accounts: 

Any balance on a bill of $25 of less may be carried over, and added to, the next billing period 

without being assessed a late fee or incurring further collection action. 

2. Late Fee: 

If payment for a bill is not received by close of business on the 30th day after the bill is issued, a 

late fee will be assessed.  The due date and late fee will be displayed prominently on the bill.  

 

 



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District           
Policy Manual 

2019 

 

 Draft 09/17/2019                                                                                                                                  xxxx-2 

 

 

Waiver of Late Fee:  

At the request of the customer, the District will waive the late fee if there are extenuating 

circumstances and the customer has not been assessed a late fee for delinquent payment in the 

preceding 12 months.  

  

 

3. Alternative Payment Arrangements:  

Any customer who is unable to pay for water service within the normal payment period may 

request an alternative payment arrangement to avoid late fees or disruption of service.  The 

District will consider all circumstances surrounding the request and make a determination as to 

whether the payment arrangement is warranted.    

  

a. Certification by Primary Care Provider  

Certification by a Primary Care Provider (General Practitioner,  

Obstetrician/Gynecologist, Pediatrician, Family Practice Physician, Primary Care Clinic, 

Hospital, or Outpatient Clinic) who certifies that the termination of service will be life 

threatening or pose a serious threat to the health and safety of any resident of the 

premises where water service is provided will obligate the District to enter an amortized 

repayment plan.    

  

Payment arrangements that extend into the next billing period are considered an amortization 

plan, which must be in writing and signed by the customer.  An amortization plan will amortize 

the unpaid balance over a period defined by the customer, not to exceed 12 months from the 

original date of the bill.  The amortized payments will be combined with, and subject to the due 

date of, the customer’s regular bill.  The customer must comply with the terms of the 

amortization plan and remain current as charges accrue in each subsequent billing period.  The 

customer may not request further amortization of any subsequent unpaid charges while paying 

delinquent charges pursuant to an amortization plan.  Failure to comply with the terms of an 

amortization plan will result in the issuance of a written disconnection notice.  The  

disconnection notice will be in the form of a door hanger delivered to the premises no less than 

5 business days in advance of discontinuance of service.  

  

 



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District           
Policy Manual 

2019 

 

 Draft 09/17/2019                                                                                                                                  xxxx-3 

6. Additional Notifications:  

As a courtesy, the District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to notify the customer that 

the account remains past due and further collection action will be forthcoming approximately 60 

days after bill issuance.  The means of notification will be based upon the notification preference 

(text, phone, or email) selected by the customer.  Customers who have not selected a means of 

notification will be notified by phone.  The District assumes no responsibility for phone or email 

contact information that has not been kept up‐to‐date by the customer.  

  

7. Written Disconnection Notice:  

The District shall not discontinue water service for non‐payment until payment by the customer 

has been delinquent for at least 60 days.  The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort 

to contact the customer in writing at least 10 business days before discontinuation of water 

service for non‐payment.  The written disconnection notice will be mailed to the mailing address 

designated on the account.  If the mailing address and the address of the property to which 

water service is provided are different, a second notice will be mailed to the service address and 

addressed to “Occupant”.  The written disconnection notice will include:  

▪ Customer’s name and address  

▪ Amount that is past due  

▪ Date by which payment or payment arrangements are required to avoid 

discontinuation of service  

▪ Description of the process to apply for an amortization plan  

▪ Description of the process to dispute or appeal a bill  

▪ District phone number and a web link to the District’s written collection 

policy  

  

a. Notice to Residential Tenants/Occupants in an Individually Metered Residence  

The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to inform the occupants, by means 

of written notice, when the water service account is in arrears and subject to 

disconnection at least 10 days before water service is shut off.  The written notice will 

advise the tenant/occupant that they have the right to become customers of the District 

without being required to pay the amount due on the delinquent account, as long as 

they are willing to assume financial responsibility for subsequent charges for water 

service at that address.  In order for the amount due on the delinquent account to be 

waived, the tenant/occupant must provide verification of tenancy in the form of a rental 

agreement or proof of rent payments.  

b. Notice to Tenants/Occupants in a Multi‐Unit Complex Served through a Master Meter 

The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to inform the occupants, by means 

of written notice hung on the door of each residence, when the water service account is 

in arrears and subject to disconnection at least 10 days before water service is shut off.   



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District           
Policy Manual 

2019 

 

 Draft 09/17/2019                                                                                                                                  xxxx-4 

The written notice will advise the tenant/occupant that they have the right to become 

customers of the District without being required to pay the amount due on the 

delinquent account, as long as they are willing to assume financial responsibility for 

subsequent charges for water service at the address(es) served by the master meter.  If 

one or more of the occupants are willing and able to assume responsibility for the 

subsequent charges for water service to the satisfaction of the District, or if there is a 

physical means, legally available to the District, of selectively terminating service to 

those occupants who have not met the requirements for service, the District will make 

service available to the occupants who have met those requirements.  

  

If the written disconnection notice is returned through the mail as undeliverable, the District will 

make a reasonable, good faith effort to visit the residence and leave a notice of discontinuance 

for non‐payment.  

  

8. Forty‐eight (48) Hour Notice of Termination:  

The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to notify the customer 48 hours in advance 

of disconnection of water service for non‐payment.  The means of notification will be based 

upon the notification preference (text, phone, mail or email) selected by the customer.  

Customers who have not selected a means of notification will be notified by phone.  If the 

District is unable to make contact by text, phone, email, or mail, a good faith effort will be made 

to visit the residence and leave a notice of termination of service.  

  

9. Disconnection Deadline:  

All delinquent water service charges and associated fees must be received by the District by 4:30 

p.m. on the day specified in the written disconnection notice.   

  

10. Disconnection of Water Service for Non‐Payment:  

The District will disconnect water service by turning off, and in some cases locking off, the 

meter.  Before service is disconnected, the customer will be notified by a written disconnection 

notice at least 10 business days prior to termination and a second notice 48 hours prior to 

termination of service.  The customer will be charged a fee to re‐establish service in the billing 

system regardless of whether the meter has physically been turned off.  The meter will be 

locked in the off position if payment is not received within 10 days of initial termination.   

  

11. Re‐establishment of Service:  

In order to resume or continue service that has been disconnected for non‐payment, the 

customer must pay a re‐establishment fee.  The District will endeavor to reconnect service as 

soon as practicable but, at a minimum, will restore service before the end of the next regular 

working day following payment of any past due amount and delinquent fees attributable to the 



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District           
Policy Manual 

2019 

 

 Draft 09/17/2019                                                                                                                                  xxxx-5 

termination of service.  Water service that is turned on by any person other than District 

personnel or without District authorization may be subject to fines or additional charges or fees.  

Any damages that occur as a result of unauthorized restoration of service are the responsibility 

of the customer.  

  

12. Re‐establishment of Service After Business Hours:  

 

Services that are off and locked cannot be re‐established after hours.  

  

 

13. Notification of Disposition of Returned Check:  

Upon receipt of a returned check taken as payment of water service or other charges, the 

District will consider the account not paid.  The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort 

to notify the customer by phone or email of the returned check.   A 48‐hour notice of 

termination of service due to a returned check will be generated.  The means of notification will 

be based upon the notification preference (text, phone, or email) selected by the customer.  

Customers who have not selected a means of notification will be notified by phone.  If the 

District is unable to make contact by text, phone, or email, a good faith effort will be made to 

visit the residence and leave a notice of termination of service.  

  

Water service will be disconnected if the amount of the returned check and the returned check 

charge are not paid on or before the date specified in the notice of termination.  All amounts 

paid to redeem a returned check and to pay the returned check charge must be in cash, credit 

card or certified funds.  

  

14. Returned Checks for Previously Disconnected Service:  

In the event a customer tenders a non‐negotiable check as payment to restore water service 

previously disconnected for non‐payment and the District restores service, the District may 

promptly disconnect service without providing further notice.  No 48‐hour notice of termination 

will be given in the case of a non‐negotiable check tendered for payment of water charges that 

were subject to discontinuance.  

  

Any customer issuing a non‐negotiable check as payment to restore service turned off for 

nonpayment will be required to pay cash, credit card or certified funds to restore future service 

disconnections for a period of 12 months from the date of the returned payment.  

  



Georgetown Divide Public Utility District           
Policy Manual 

2019 

 

 Draft 09/17/2019                                                                                                                                  xxxx-6 

15. Disputed Bills:  

If a customer disputes the water bill and exercises their right to appeal to the Board of Directors, 

the District will not disconnect water service for non‐payment while the appeal is pending.  

 



Senate Bill No. 

998 















Sample Policy 



H:\Board Items\All Memos\2019\03‐05‐19\DRAFT\Finance\03‐05‐19 Item 6.7.1 District Policy 500‐004 
Collection Policy.docx 

Title:  Collection Policy (formerly Delinquent Accounts) 

Number:  500‐004 

Approval:   Board of Directors 

Approval Date:   March 5, 2019 

Effective Date:    May 1, 2019 

Review Date:  
Upon change of 
statute 

Reference: 
Senate Bill No. 998:  Discontinuation of Residential Water Service 
California Government Code Sections 60370 ‐60375.5 

Purpose/Background: 
This policy enumerates Soquel Creek Water District’s administrative actions for the collection of 
delinquent accounts, including notifications, fee assignments and discontinuation of service.  This policy 
will be made available to the public on the District’s website.  The District can be contacted by phone at 
(831) 475‐8500 to discuss options for averting discontinuation of water service for nonpayment under
the terms of this policy.

Text of policy:
Soquel Creek Water District, as an agency of the state, formed as a special district pursuant to general 
law for the local performance of governmental or proprietary functions within limited boundaries, is 
governed in the execution of the collection of delinquent accounts by California Government Code 
Sections 60370 – 60375.5.  Furthermore, as an urban or community water system that supplies water to 
more than 200 service connections, the District is further governed, effective by law February 1, 2020, 
by Senate Bill No. 998. 

Delinquent Account: 
Delinquent accounts are hereafter identified as any account that remains unpaid (and without having 
made payment arrangements or established an alternative payment schedule) by close of business 21 
days after issuance of the water bill.  The following rules apply to the collection of delinquent accounts: 

1. Small Balance Accounts:
Any balance on a bill of $20 of less may be carried over, and added to, the next billing period
without being assessed a late fee or incurring further collection action.

2. Late Fee:
If payment for a bill is not received by close of business on the 21st day after the bill is issued, a
late fee will be assessed.  The due date and late fee will be displayed prominently on the bill.
The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to notify the customer of an impending
late fee 2 days before the due date identified on the bill.  The means of notification will be based
upon the notification preference (text, phone, or email) selected by the customer.  Customers
who have not selected a means of notification will be notified by phone.  The District assumes
no responsibility for phone or email contact information that has not been kept up‐to‐date by
the customer.



POL500‐004 
Title 
Page 2 of 5 
 

H:\Board Items\All Memos\2019\03‐05‐19\DRAFT\Finance\03‐05‐19 Item 6.7.1 District Policy 500‐004 
Collection Policy.docx 
 

3. Waiver of Late Fee: 
At the request of the customer, the District will waive the late fee if there are extenuating 
circumstances and the customer has not been assessed a late fee for delinquent payment in the 
preceding 6 months. 
 

4. Waiver of Delinquent Notices and Fees to the State of California 
The State of California, because of a sound financial base and variations in budget approval and 
warrant payment procedures, will not be sent delinquent notices or assessed a late fee for 
delinquent payment of existing accounts. 

 
5. Alternative Payment Arrangements: 

Any customer who is unable to pay for water service within the normal payment period may 
request an alternative payment arrangement to avoid late fees or disruption of service.  The 
District will consider all circumstances surrounding the request and make a determination as to 
whether the payment arrangement is warranted.   

 
a. Certification by Primary Care Provider 

Certification by a Primary Care Provider (General Practitioner, 
Obstetrician/Gynecologist, Pediatrician, Family Practice Physician, Primary Care Clinic, 
Hospital, or Outpatient Clinic) who certifies that the termination of service will be life‐
threatening or pose a serious threat to the health and safety of any resident of the 
premises where water service is provided will obligate the District to enter an amortized 
repayment plan.   

 
Payment arrangements that extend into the next billing period are considered an amortization 
plan, which must be in writing and signed by the customer.  An amortization plan will amortize 
the unpaid balance over a period defined by the customer, not to exceed 12 months from the 
original date of the bill.  The amortized payments will be combined with, and subject to the due 
date of, the customer’s regular bill.  The customer must comply with the terms of the 
amortization plan and remain current as charges accrue in each subsequent billing period.  The 
customer may not request further amortization of any subsequent unpaid charges while paying 
delinquent charges pursuant to an amortization plan.  Failure to comply with the terms of an 
amortization plan will result in the issuance of a written disconnection notice.  The 
disconnection notice will be in the form of a door hanger delivered to the premises no less than 
5 business days in advance of discontinuance of service. 
 

6. Additional Notifications: 
As a courtesy, the District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to notify the customer that 
the account remains past due and further collection action will be forthcoming approximately 
60 days after bill issuance.  The means of notification will be based upon the notification 
preference (text, phone, or email) selected by the customer.  Customers who have not selected 
a means of notification will be notified by phone.  The District assumes no responsibility for 
phone or email contact information that has not been kept up‐to‐date by the customer. 
 

7. Written Disconnection Notice: 
The District shall not discontinue water service for non‐payment until payment by the customer 
has been delinquent for at least 60 days.  The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort 
to contact the customer in writing at least 7 business days before discontinuation of water 



POL500‐004 
Title 
Page 3 of 5 
 

H:\Board Items\All Memos\2019\03‐05‐19\DRAFT\Finance\03‐05‐19 Item 6.7.1 District Policy 500‐004 
Collection Policy.docx 
 

service for non‐payment.  The written disconnection notice will be mailed to the mailing address 
designated on the account.  If the mailing address and the address of the property to which 
water service is provided are different, a second notice will be mailed to the service address and 
addressed to “Occupant”.  The written disconnection notice will include: 

 Customer’s name and address 
 Amount that is past due 
 Date by which payment or payment arrangements are required to avoid 

discontinuation of service 
 Description of the process to apply for an amortization plan 
 Description of the process to dispute or appeal a bill 
 District phone number and a web link to the District’s written collection 

policy 
 

a. Notice to Residential Tenants/Occupants in an Individually Metered Residence 
The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to inform the occupants, by means 
of written notice, when the water service account is in arrears and subject to 
disconnection at least 10 days before water service is shut off.  The written notice will 
advise the tenant/occupant that they have the right to become customers of the District 
without being required to pay the amount due on the delinquent account, as long as 
they are willing to assume financial responsibility for subsequent charges for water 
service at that address.  In order for the amount due on the delinquent account to be 
waived, the tenant/occupant must provide verification of tenancy in the form of a rental 
agreement or proof of rent payments. 

b. Notice to Tenants/Occupants in a Multi‐Unit Complex Served through a Master Meter 
The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to inform the occupants, by means 
of written notice hung on the door of each residence, when the water service account is 
in arrears and subject to disconnection at least 10 days before water service is shut off.   
The written notice will advise the tenant/occupant that they have the right to become 
customers of the District without being required to pay the amount due on the 
delinquent account, as long as they are willing to assume financial responsibility for 
subsequent charges for water service at the address(es) served by the master meter.  If 
one or more of the occupants are willing and able to assume responsibility for the 
subsequent charges for water service to the satisfaction of the District, or if there is a 
physical means, legally available to the District, of selectively terminating service to 
those occupants who have not met the requirements for service, the District will make 
service available to the occupants who have met those requirements. 
 

If the written disconnection notice is returned through the mail as undeliverable, the District will 
make a reasonable, good faith effort to visit the residence and leave a notice of discontinuance 
for non‐payment. 

 
8. Forty‐eight (48) Hour Notice of Termination: 

The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort to notify the customer 48 hours in advance 
of disconnection of water service for non‐payment.  The means of notification will be based 
upon the notification preference (text, phone, or email) selected by the customer.  Customers 
who have not selected a means of notification will be notified by phone.  If the District is unable 
to make contact by text, phone, or email, a good faith effort will be made to visit the residence 
and leave a notice of termination of service. 



POL500‐004 
Title 
Page 4 of 5 
 

H:\Board Items\All Memos\2019\03‐05‐19\DRAFT\Finance\03‐05‐19 Item 6.7.1 District Policy 500‐004 
Collection Policy.docx 
 

 
9. Disconnection Deadline: 

All delinquent water service charges and associated fees must be received by the District by 5:00 
p.m. on the day specified in the written disconnection notice.  
 

10. Disconnection of Water Service for Non‐Payment: 
The District will disconnect water service by turning off, and in some cases locking off, the 
meter.  Before service is disconnected, the customer will be notified by a written disconnection 
notice at least 7 business days prior to termination and a second notice 48 hours prior to 
termination of service.  The customer will be charged a fee to re‐establish service in the billing 
system regardless of whether the meter has physically been turned off.  The meter will be 
locked in the off position if payment is not received within 7 days of initial termination.  
 

11. Re‐establishment of Service: 
In order to resume or continue service that has been disconnected for non‐payment, the 
customer must pay a re‐establishment fee.  The District will endeavor to reconnect service as 
soon as practicable but, at a minimum, will restore service before the end of the next regular 
working day following payment of any past due amount and delinquent fees attributable to the 
termination of service.  Water service that is turned on by any person other than District 
personnel or without District authorization may be subject to fines or additional charges or fees.  
Any damages that occur as a result of unauthorized restoration of service are the responsibility 
of the customer. 
 

12. Re‐establishment of Service After Business Hours: 
Service restored after 5:00 pm Monday through Friday, weekends, or holidays will be charged 
an after‐hours re‐establishment fee.  Service will not be restored after regular business hours 
unless the customer has been informed of the after‐hours re‐establishment fee and has signed 
an agreement acknowledging the fee and agreeing to contact the District’s billing department 
no later than noon the following business day to pay the subject fee.  The after‐hours re‐
establishment fee is in addition to the regular re‐establishment fee and the late fee for a past 
due account.  District staff responding to service calls are not permitted to collect payment but 
will instruct the customer to contact the billing department before noon the following business 
day.  Services that are off and locked cannot be re‐established after hours. 
 
Sometimes water service is discontinued because the service is a new account and the District 
has not received a request to establish service.  If service is being restored after regular business 
hours because the customer has yet to establish service, the customer must agree to contact 
the billing department to establish service the next business day and the after‐hours re‐
establishment will be waived.  If service is discontinued for any reason not identified above, the 
service should be restored as quickly as possible and the customer advised to contact the billing 
department to resolve the issue.  No after‐hours re‐establishment fee will be charged in this 
instance. 
 

13. Notification of Disposition of Returned Check: 
Upon receipt of a returned check taken as payment of water service or other charges, the 
District will consider the account not paid.  The District will make a reasonable, good faith effort 
to notify the customer by phone or email of the returned check.   A 48‐hour notice of 
termination of service due to a returned check will be generated.  The means of notification will 



POL500‐004 
Title 
Page 5 of 5 
 

H:\Board Items\All Memos\2019\03‐05‐19\DRAFT\Finance\03‐05‐19 Item 6.7.1 District Policy 500‐004 
Collection Policy.docx 
 

be based upon the notification preference (text, phone, or email) selected by the customer.  
Customers who have not selected a means of notification will be notified by phone.  If the 
District is unable to make contact by text, phone, or email, a good faith effort will be made to 
visit the residence and leave a notice of termination of service. 
 
Water service will be disconnected if the amount of the returned check and the returned check 
charge are not paid on or before the date specified in the notice of termination.  All amounts 
paid to redeem a returned check and to pay the returned check charge must be in cash, credit 
card or certified funds. 

 
14. Returned Checks for Previously Disconnected Service: 

In the event a customer tenders a non‐negotiable check as payment to restore water service 
previously disconnected for non‐payment and the District restores service, the District may 
promptly disconnect service without providing further notice.  No 48‐hour notice of termination 
will be given in the case of a non‐negotiable check tendered for payment of water charges that 
were subject to discontinuance. 
 
Any customer issuing a non‐negotiable check as payment to restore service turned off for non‐
payment will be required to pay cash, credit card or certified funds to restore future service 
disconnections for a period of 12 months from the date of the returned payment. 

 
15. Disputed Bills: 

If a customer disputes the water bill and exercises their right to appeal to the Board of Directors, 
the District will not disconnect water service for non‐payment while the appeal is pending. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 




